

Box 683 • Ophir, CO 81426

#### NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TOWN OF OPHIR, CO 81426 TUESDAY 7:00 PM, NOVEMBER 16th, 2021 REMOTE MEETING PLATFORM VIA ZOOM

#### Join Zoom Meeting

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85369385534?pwd=Y0FPVy91bGNHNWJENmhBclRKS2V4UT09

#### Meeting ID: 853 6938 553 Passcode: 772238 One Tap Mobile +13462487799

#### AGENDA

- 1. CALL TO ORDER
- 2. ADOPTION & SIGNATURE OF OCTOBER 19th, 2021 MEETING MINUTES
- **3.** APPROVAL OF AGENDA
- 4. BUSINESS ITEMS
  - **a.** Consent Agenda (10 minutes)
    - Approval of Mayor's signature on a Memorandum of Understanding for distributing opioid settlement and recovery funds to local counties and municipalities – John
    - ii. First Reading of Ordinance 2021-14, Renewal of Ground Pounders Public Works Contract for 2022-John
  - b. GMUG Public Comments from Town of Ophir and Individual Ophirites Jacey
  - c. Preliminary 2022 Budget Discussion John and Cindy (60 mins)
- 5. STAFF REPORTS
  - a. Tri State/Ames-Burro Bridge Line Vegetation Management Plan- 2022 operations Jacey
  - **b.** Fall Road Maintenance Complete John
- 6. NEW BUSINESS
  - a. Wintertime Ophir Party/Pot Luck in the Maintenance Barn
- 7. ADJOURN

#### MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TOWN OF OPHIR, CO 81426 TUESDAY, October 19th 7:00 PM REMOTE MEETING VIA ZOOM PLATFORM

#### CALL TO ORDER

(TIME: 7:03 PM)

Voting Member: Judah Kuper, Sue Herir, Ernie Watenpaugh, Eric Beerman, Jacey Depriest, Corrine Platt, Mason Osgood, Valentia Garcia, Kim Wheels, Teri Steinberg, Janice Gerona, , Catherine Gockley, Valerie Sloan, Phil, Lee, Tyler Shultz, Non-Voting Member: Emma Gerona, John Wontrobski, Ken Page, Terry Schulyer

#### ADOPTION & SIGNATURE OF September 21st, 2021 MEETING MINUTES

Minutes adopted with unanimous consent

#### APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Agenda approved with unanimous consent

#### **STAFF UPDATES**

Town Manager (): N/A Town Mayor (Corinne Platt): Town Halloween is happening! 5:30pm Sunday, hay parade, park gathering Treasurer (Cindy Wysznski): New budget 2022 out Town Clerk (Mason Osgood): Going through old minutes

Ophir Environmental Chairperson (Jacey Depriest): N/A

**Planning and Zoning Chairperson (Ernie Watenpaugh):** LUC work presentation coming to a GA meeting soon

#### **BUSINESS ITEMS**

A. Second Reading of An Ordinance 2021-10 Approving an Employment Agreement with Town Manager

Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-10 passes with unanimous consent

- **B. Second Reading of An Ordinance 2021-12 Purchase of Flow Meter** Second Reading of Ordinance 2021-12 passes with unanimous consent
- C. First Reading of An Ordinance 2021-13 Amendment to 2021 Budget First Reading Ordinance 2021-13 passes with unanimous consent

# D. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 2021-8 A Resolution Denying an application by Glenn Pauls for minimum lot area requirement variance for Lots 1 and 2, Block P, Ophir Colorado

Phil motions to adopt Resolution 2021-8 which denies application for Lot 1 and 2, Jacey seconds

In Favor: Corinne Platt, Ernie Watenpaugh, Sue Herir, Janice Gerona, Catherine Gockley, Phil, Lee, Dayna, Jacey Not in Favor: Eric Beerman Abstain: Judah Kuper, Kim Wheels, Teri Steinberg, Natalie, Valerie, Tyler Shultz, Mason Osgood

The ayes have it. The motion is carried and Resolution 2021-8 has been approved and adopted.

#### **E. GMUG Comments**

Jacey Depriest (OEC) presented on current GMUG commenting situation for SW Colorado and Ophir specific issues. OEC to present final comments before commenting deadline, and perhaps host a GMUG workshop in upcoming OEC meeting.

#### F. EcoAction Partners & SMPA Annual Presentation

Emma Gerona, Kim Wheels, and Terry Schuyler (SMPA) presented on their operational updates.

#### G. Draft 2022 Budget

Cindy presents on working 2022 budget. Budget PDF's to be distributed to town via email.

#### H. Quarterly Budget

Included in budget packet.

#### I. Water Engineering Grant Update

Ken Page presented on status of DOLA grant. Grant is submitted, working through SGM for identifying priorities for cost estimates for supply and distribution of water resources. Telluride Volunteer Fire Dept. visited Ophir, need to re-assess available and working fire hydrants, Station 4 is used only if someone is near, need for more volunteer fire fighters in Ophir area.

#### J. Monthly invoices

Ground Pounders payment for Warner Springs Project. Turtle Lake/Bee Happy payment for noxious weed removal.

#### K. Nominations for OEC Commission

Jacey Depriest nominated Tyler Schultz for OEC commission, Corinne seconds. Nomination passes with unanimous consent.

#### L. Nominations for P&Z Commission

Ernie Watenpaugh nominates Judah Kuper for P&Z commission, Corinne seconds. Nomination passes with unanimous consent.

#### **6. NEW BUSINESS**

No new business.

#### 7. ADJOURN

Mason Osgood motions to adjourn, Ernie seconds. Unanimous consent to adjourn! Town Clerk, Mason Osgood

Date

Minutes prepared by Mason Osgood, Town Clerk

Audio recordings of all General Assembly Meetings are available to the public. Please contact the Town Clerk if you would like a copy of this month's audio of the meeting minutes.

To: Ophir General Assembly

From: John Wontrobski, Ophir Town Manager

RE: Item #4.a.i on November 16, 2021 GA Agenda- State of Colorado Attorney General Opioid Settlement MOU

Date: September 15, 2021

As you may know, the State, as well as several Colorado local governments, have pursued litigation against various pharmaceutical companies for their role in causing the opioid epidemic in Colorado. That litigation recently resulted in settlements with Purdue Pharma, McKinsey & Co., Johnson & Johnson, AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, and McKesson, resulting in up to approximately \$400 million in settlement funds for both the State and Colorado local governments to abate the opioid crisis.

To maximize the settlement funds within Colorado, it is important that all Colorado counties and municipalities participate in these settlements and the distribution process by signing the following four documents:

1. The MOU that lays out the allocation of Opioid recoveries in the State of Colorado;

2. The Subdivision Settlement Participation Form that releases subdivisions' legal claims against Johnson & Johnson;

3. The Subdivision Settlement Participation Form that releases subdivisions' legal claims against AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, and McKesson; and

4. The Colorado Subdivision Escrow Agreement that ensures subdivisions' legal claims are released only when 95% participation by certain local governments has been reached. That 95% participation threshold is important because it triggers certain amounts of incentive payments under the settlements and signals to the settling pharmaceutical companies that the settlements have wide acceptance.

These documents would be signed by the Mayor of Ophir and submitted to the State of Colorado Attorney General's Office. If anyone would like to review entire copies of the four documents, please request to do so at <u>manager@ophir.us</u>.

I have also included a Colorado Opioids Settlement MOU: FAQ sheet, prepared by the Colorado Attorney General's Office.

A positive vote will be needed by the GA to authorize the Mayor's signature on these documents.

- To: Ophir General Assembly
- From: John Wontrobski, Ophir Town Manager
- RE: Item #4.a.ii on November 16, 2021 GA Agenda- Renewal of Ground Pounders annual Snow Removal and Street Maintenance
- Date: September 15, 2021

The proposed contract with Ground Pounders for 2022 Snow Removal and Street maintenance is attached. Hours prices have remained the same- the option of an hourly laborer (i.e. hand snow shoveler) has been removed. Ground Pounders will have a new plow driver for the 2021/22 snow season.

A positive vote will be needed by the GA to authorize the Mayor's signature on this document.



#### TOWN OF OPHIR, COLORADO

#### **ORDINANCE NO. 2021-14**

#### AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE AN AGREEMENT WITH GROUND POUNDERS, LLC FOR STREET AND TOWN-OWNED UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS

WHEREAS, Town of Ophir has need for contracted street and town-owned utility infrastructure maintenance and improvements; and

**WHEREAS,** Town of Ophir shall utilize annually budgeted funds for street and utility maintenance and improvements, which for 2021 consist of the following:

- \$22,000 Road Maintenance
- \$13,500 Snow Removal
- \$15,000 Utility Infrastructure Repair & Maintenance
- \$10,000 Equipment Maintenance
- Allocated fund infrastructure improvements
- Funds shall also be subject to unpredictable weather and unexpected utility repairs; and

WHEREAS, Town of Ophir has solicited and received pricing options from a qualified contractor; and

WHEREAS, Ground Pounders, LLC provided the most qualified options compatible with Town of Ophir budget.

## NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE TOWN OF OPHIR, COLORADO that:

**SECTION 1.** The Town Mayor and Town Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a <u>Street and Town-Owned Utility Infrastructure Maintenance and</u> <u>Improvements Contract</u> with Ground Pounders, LLC (the "Contract"), in the form attached hereto. Mayor and Town Manager may approve additional non-substantive changes.

**SECTION 2.** CONTRACT RATES. The following shall be the contracted rates:

- 1. Utilizing Town Equipment
  - $\circ$  Equipment operator labor = 50/hr.

- 2. Utilizing Ground Pounders Equipment
  - $\circ$  772BH Grader = \$160/hr.
  - $\circ$  200C Excavator = \$175/hr.
  - $\circ$  120C Excavator = \$160/hr.
  - $\circ$  310E Backhoe = \$120/hr.
  - 50G Mini X = 120/hr.
  - $\circ \quad \text{Plow Truck} = \$100/\text{hr}.$
  - $\circ$  Mack Dump Truck = 95/hr.
  - $\circ$  Water Truck = 95/hr.
  - $\circ$  Drum Roller = \$95/hr.
  - Snow Blower Attachment = 80/hr.
  - Dump Trailer=\$75/hr.
  - Trench Compactor = 60/hr.

Approval of the Town Manager prior to use of Contractor's equipment shall be required.

**SECTION 3.** The Contract may be annually renewed, and Contract Rates may be modified, upon motion and vote by the General Assembly, subject to annual appropriations.

**SECTION 4.** PUBLICATION. After final adoption, notice of passage shall be published in the manner prescribed by the Town Charter.

**SECTION 5.** SEVERABILITY. If any one or more sections or parts of this Ordinance is adjudged unenforceable or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, the intention being that the various provisions herein are severable.

**SECTION 6.** EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon publication of notice of passage.

Introduced, Read and Heard at Public Hearing on First Reading by the General Assembly of the Town of Ophir on the 16<sup>th</sup> day of November 2021.

Approved and Adopted on Second and Final Reading by the General Assembly of the Town of Ophir on the \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_ 2021.

By: \_\_\_\_

Corinne Platt, Mayor

Attest:

Mason Osgood, Town Clerk

Approved as to Form:

Stephen B. Johnson, Town Attorney

Attachment: Contract

### Snow Removal Contract Between Town of Ophir and Ground Pounders, LLC

 Agreement between Town of Ophir, Colorado (Town) and Ground Pounder, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (Contractor) for snow plowing and snow removal services, for Winter/Spring season 2021-2022, including plowing of all primary streets within Town of

Ophir town limits.

- 2. Contractor shall utilize Town's snowplow equipment including Dodge Truck, John Deere Back Hoe and Caterpillar Front Loader. Town shall be responsible for expenses associated with the operation and maintenance of Town's equipment.
- 3. Town shall maintain General Liability insurance on all Town equipment utilized by Contractor.
- 4. Contractor shall maintain insurance as will protect him from claims for damages because of bodily harm, including death and from claims to property, which may arise out of or result from Contactor's operations under this contract, whether such operations be by himself or anyone employed by Contractor. Insurance shall include, but not limited to, General Liability and Workman's Compensation Insurance. Town shall be named as an additional insured under the Contractor's insurance policies.
- 5. Contractor shall bill Town at the rate of \$50 per hour.
- 6. On the occasion Contractor utilizes Contractor's equipment for snow removal, Contractor shall bill Town at the rate below:
- 772BH Grader = \$160/hr.
- $\circ$  200C Excavator = \$175/hr.
- $\circ$  120C Excavator = \$160/hr.
- 310E Backhoe = \$120/hr.
- 50G Mini X = \$120/hr.
- Plow Truck = \$100/hr.
- Mack Dump Truck = \$95/hr.
- Water Truck = \$95/hr.
- Drum Roller = \$95/hr.
- $\circ$  Snow Blower Attachment = \$80/hr.
- Dump Trailer=\$75/hr.
- Trench Compactor = \$60/hr.

Approval of the Town Manager prior to use of Contractor's equipment be utilized shall be

required.

- 7. Billable time shall commence when Contractor arrives at the Public Works building.
- 8. Contractor will bill monthly. Invoices shall be itemized by date, time expended, employee initials, and services provided.

- Plowing shall occur when overnight accumulation equals or exceeds 3 inches, with streets cleared of accumulation by 7:00 am. Overnight conditions shall be communicated by Town Manager or other designated person by the Town Manager by 5:30 am.
- 10. Heavy snow days (overnight accumulation exceeding 6 inches), Town acknowledges completion of all streets may require work extending past 7am.
- 11. Contractor shall clear streets to allow a minimum of two vehicles to pass safely.

12. Contractor shall clear areas accessing fire hydrants, Town's propane tanks and other necessary areas as designated by Town, within limitations of equipment. Contractor shall **not** be required to hand shovel any areas not accessible by provided snowplow equipment.

13. Contractor shall perform daily maintenance of snowplow equipment recommend by manufacturer. Town shall supply materials for daily maintenance.

- 14. Contractor shall immediately notify Town of any necessary repairs and seasonal maintenance as needed.
- 15. The Contractor shall be responsible to the Town of Ophir for the acts and omissions of the Contractor's employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees.
- 16. The Contractor shall procure and maintain in force Workers Compensation Insurance, Employers' Liability Insurance, Business Automobile Liability Insurance, Commercial General Liability Insurance (CGL).
- 17. The parties, by entering into this CONTRACT, do not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this CONTRACT, the monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities and protection provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. Section 24–10–101 et seq., as it is from time to time amended, or otherwise available to the Town, its successors, employees, officers or agents.
- 18. CONTRACTOR shall expeditiously complete all Work in a good and workmanlike manner and shall use reasonable care during snowplowing and snow removal Work.

Town of Ophir		Contractor, Ground Pounders, LLC	
John Wontrobski, Town Manager	Date	Mike Kimball	Date
Corinne Platt, Mayor	Date		



Grand Mesa, Uncompahgre, and Gunnison National Forests Attn: Plan Revision Team 2250 South Main Street Delta, CO 81416 gmugforestplan@fs.fed.us

Dear GMUG Planning Team,

Thank you for this opportunity to submit feedback on the Draft Revised Plan of the Grand Mesa Uncompahgre Gunnison National Forest. The Town of Ophir (Ophir) has been tracking the development of the plan at each stage and commends the Forest Service for the tremendous research, information-gathering effort and public input that has gone into this latest Plan. Ophir's identity and way of life are built upon the Forest Service lands that surround our town. We believe that our clean air, clean water and public health are directly linked to the protection of our public lands. The influence of the Forest Plan on the future of Ophir's health, well-being, economy, climate, and lifestyle cannot be understated.

We would like to provide our support for the comments and recommendations submitted by Sheep Mountain Alliance et al., and reaffirm our commitment to supporting wilderness protections for multiple lands in the GMUG and specifically the Ophir area.

The Town of Ophir appreciates how this process has been open, and that feedback has been solicited throughout. However, Ophir is disappointed to see that there was no meeting worked out with any of the Ute tribes as stated in the Volume I EIS. We believe that it is imperative that prior to the final record of decision being issued that these meetings take place and the various Ute tribes indigenous to these lands have an opportunity to influence the plan. With the exception listed above, it appears that FW-DC-PART-01 has largely been fulfilled in the Forest Plan process and we hope that will continue in the future.

Having reviewed the four alternatives presented by the Forest Service, we respectfully submit the following comments on the draft plan components and priorities. Referenced desired conditions, management approaches and vision do not necessarily encompass the entirety of the Ophir's opinions on the plan. Omissions do not express support or opposition to specific points in the plan. However, we have tried to be as complete as possible in our submission based on the Planning Team's request to do so.

At this time **Ophir cannot support the Draft Revised Plan Preferred Alternative B** as presented. The complexities involved in the planning process to accommodate public needs, natural resources and a rapidly changing climate, make the process incredibly challenging. We are concerned that this Draft Revised Plan and Preferred Alternative B do not adequately recognize these complexities. Alternative D is the best alternative for balancing wildlife and recreation, however it still falls short in some areas that affect Ophir specifically and that generally affect all our public health. From the DEIS "Alternative D may result in the greatest economic benefit related to wildlife-related recreation because it proposes the greatest amount of wildlife management areas, recommended wilderness, and special management areas, which would likely benefit wildlife, fishing, and hunting recreation opportunities and associated spending in the local economy..."

#### Timber

Ophir strongly opposes the substantial increase of **suitable timber** proposed in this Draft Revised Plan. Every alternative in the draft plan posits a significant increase in suitable timber across the region, which is a designation that interferes with consideration of responsible management of the forests. Ophir believes that GMUG National Forest is much more valuable for conserving biological diversity and recreation than it ever could be for timber production.

Alternatives B and C designate the entirety of Ophir valley as Suitable Timber. Alternative D has significantly less land designated suitable timber, but still has designations on the east side of Ophir Valley that we do not support. The majority of the areas designated suitable are steep slopes that are prone to avalanches and would be uneconomical to harvest. If future harvesting of timber were to occur on steep slopes it would make avalanche conditions, already an issue of much concern for public safety in our town, much more dangerous. he designation of areas as suitable timber could stand in the way of future protection for land around Ophir that is included in the Colorado Outdoor Recreation and Economy (CORE) Act, legislation that Ophir strongly supports.

Ophir is concerned that the designation of suitable lands for timber across the GMUG include large areas that cannot be harvested economically, or in some cases, that cannot be harvested at all during the life of the revised plan. This will lead to artificially inflated calculations for sustained yield limit, projected timber sale quantity (PTSQ), and projected wood sale quality (PWSQ), which in turn misleads the timber industry and the public, as well as present and future Forest Service staff, about how much timber can or should be cut on the GMUG. It could lead to lands with trees actually suitable for timber production being overcut to meet an inflated PTSQ or PWSQ that was based in large part on thousands of acres of lands that cannot be harvested during the life of the plan and likely long afterward.

In addition, this Draft Revised Plan appears to be moving from a reserve model (can it be harvested economically) to resource potential model (does it have trees). This is an interpretation, not a requirement of the 2012 Planning Rule. Per the hand book, the planning

committee was not required to analyze slopes over 40% or speculate as to future technological advances for steep slope harvest.

According to Colorado's Office of Economic Development and International Trade, Colorado's outdoor recreation economy generates **\$37 billion in consumer spending annually**, and contributes 511,000 direct jobs. Those who work in the industry have collectively earned over \$21 billion in wages and salaries, while those who support it have generated \$9 billion in state and local tax revenue.

A series of new economic studies, commissioned by the Outdoor Alliance, measures the economic impact of outdoor recreation in the GMUG. Researchers found that outdoor recreation in the Grand Mesa, Uncompaghre, and Gunnison National Forests generates \$392 million in human powered recreation alone. This number encompasses annual spending on paddling, climbing, hiking, snowsports, and mountain biking that also supports local jobs and attracts both businesses and residents to Colorado.

The sale of timber does not come close to these numbers, while at the same time negatively impacting the beauty of the region and the main reason that people come to recreate and spend much-needed money in Colorado.

#### **Recreation Opportunity Spectrum**

At this time Ophir cannot support any of the GMUG draft plan **Winter ROS** Alternatives as presented.

Ophir is strongly committed to **non-motorized use in the forestlands that surround the valley**. The noise from snowmobile use in our steep valley has tremendous impacts to residents and wildlife. Ophir has a history of quiet recreation. Ophir also has a history of large, dangerous avalanches. Recreational snowmobilers travel through steep, significant avalanche terrain, and not only put themselves at risk, but at times, put themselves directly above other backcountry users on the same slope. The Town of Ophir believes that FW-OBJ-REC should include an objective to initiate Over Snow Vehicle (OSV) planning within a specific timeframe.

All of the alternatives of the Draft Revised Land Management Plan Winter ROS GIS have the east side of Ophir Valley and Forest Road #630 (Ophir Pass), listed as "Roaded Natural". Alternative B additionally has the land north of the pass listed as "Semi-Primitive Motorized". Alternative C has both north and south of Ophir Pass listed as "Semi-Primitive Motorized" which conflicts with Town of Ophir's Source Water Protection Areas as well as proposed CORE Act protections.

Alternative D has a smaller area designated "Semi-Primitive motorized" but still has Ophir pass designated "Roaded Natural". "Roaded Natural" is an inappropriate designation here as Snowmobile traffic cannot safely follow the summer pass road and has not historically done so.

ROS Settings are defined by distance from designated motorized routes and areas. For winter purposes, there aren't any official designated routes in the Ophir area. There is no current travel management plan for over snow vehicles (OSV). Ophir believes that the designation of areas for

winter motorized traffic without this plan in place unduly influences future decision-making by the agency. Especially in light of OBJ-REC-06, which states: "Within 10 years of plan approval, to reinforce semi-primitive non-motorized settings, eliminate at least two unauthorized motorized travel routes." It is Ophir's opinion that if the GMUG is serious about enforcing semi-primitive non-motorized settings, it should close many more than two unauthorized routes in 10 years.

Per DEIS Volume I Table 86, listed potential impacts from [winter?] motorized recreation only consider impacts from illegal use. Legal use also has significant potential impacts and OSV use is occurring prior to Subpart C of Travel management rule designation.

In addition, DEIS Volume I Table 86 lists snow compaction as a threat to Canada lynx (Lynx canadensis). Canada lynx are present and reproducing in Ophir Valley. Canada lynx are protected under the Endangered Species Act as a threatened species. The Record of Decision in the Southern Rockies Lynx Management Direction published by the US Forest Service in 2008 includes the following guidelines: "Designated over-the-snow routes or play areas should not expand outside of the baseline areas of consistent snow compaction, unless it serves to consolidate use and improve lynx habitat." (p.14)

Forest Service lynx conservation policies were updated in the 2013 publication Canada Lynx Conservation Assessment and Strategy 3rd Edition (2013 LCAS). The 2013 LCAS includes the following findings and guidelines: "It has been suggested that crusting or compaction of snow may reduce the competitive advantage that lynx have in soft snow because of their long legs and low foot loadings." (2013 LCAS P-26)

The section titled Conservation Measures for Recreation Management lists the following recommendations. "Manage winter recreation activities within LUAs (linked usage areas) such that lynx habitat connectivity is maintained **or improved** where needed," and "To minimize habitat loss, concentrate recreational activities within existing developed and high winter-use areas, rather than developing new sites and facilities in lynx habitat. On federal lands in areas with low levels of recreation currently, **consider limiting the future development or expansion of developed winter recreation sites** or concentrated winter use areas." (2013 LCAS P-94).

At nearby Trout Lake, the FS maintains there should be no net increase in groomed trails in order to mitigate impacts to the Canada Lynx: "Lizard Head Pass has been identified by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) as a 'lynx linkage', an area that connects known tracts of suitable lynx habitat. ... Consequently, in order to avoid impacts, the Forest Service will follow FWS guidelines which direct that there be no net increase in groomed winter routes within this suitable lynx habitat." (May 2015 scoping letter to the Telluride Nordic Center)

As elk, mountain lions and moose are also present in the Ophir Valley during winter months, all motorized traffic should be restricted from December 1 to June 15, including OSV and maintenance equipment to limit impacts to existing calving areas and increase calving opportunities. *"Winter and spring are especially stressful times for wildlife. They are struggling to survive and reproduce when resources are already scarce and all of their energy is put* 

towards survival. This is a highly sensitive time when vehicular traffic and noise can be very disruptive by confounding that stress even more" (USFS Fish and Wildlife Biologist, Kristen Meyer).

For these many reasons, we respectfully request the planning committee to change the designation of Ophir Valley (consisting of the Howards Fork watershed east of HWY 145, including Waterfall and Swamp canyons) to a **Winter ROS as Semi-Primitive Non-motorized**.

With respect to the **Summer ROS** we wish to emphasize our commitment to protecting the valley from excessive motorized use and would encourage recreation to be sustainably managed. We appreciate that preferred Alternative B designates the lands on the north and south sides of the Ophir Pass Road as "semi-primitive non-motorized". In 2005, under the jurisdiction of US forest ranger Kathy Peckham, several gates were installed in the east end of the Ophir Valley, closing motorized use on mining roads in Waterfall Canyon, Swamp Canyon, Carbonero and Chapman Gulch. Several of these gates have been damaged by avalanches since then and Ophir has been in communication with current forest ranger Megan Eno requesting to move the gates to within eyesight of Ophir Pass Road.

Additionally, GDL-REC-12 makes the prohibition of motorized use of designated routes a guideline. It must be a standard. It is required by the Travel Management Rule: "After these roads, trails, and areas are designated, motor vehicle use, including the class of vehicle and time of year, not in accordance with these designations is prohibited by 36 CFR 261.13." 36 CFR 212.50. There has been a steady increase in OHV traffic in Ophir and across the GMUG over the past several years, with the summer of 2020 seeing exponential increase.

Regarding the ROS Settings and analysis, "**Pristine**" summer has not been mapped and is not included in the summer management plan. The back of Waterfall and Swamp Canyons following the boundaries established by CORE Act seem to fit the criteria for "Pristine." If this area is not found to be suitable upon further examination, there are certainly other areas in GMUG that can and should be categorized as "Pristine."

#### **Other Management Designations**

The Town of Ophir supports the **Wilderness Area recommendations in Alternative D**, and urges that those be included in the final plan. Alternative B's 34,000 acres of recommended wilderness is a small reflection of lands that should be recommended. Ophir would encourage the inclusion of CORE act wilderness and special management area designations in the final document. We agree with the public comment from San Miguel, Ouray, Gunnison, and Hinsdale Counties Boards of County Commissioners which states;

"The GMUG specific Wilderness, Special Management and Mineral Withdraw designations included in the CORE Act are the result of more than 10 years of collaboration among local leaders, businesses, and ranchers in San Miguel, Gunnison and Ouray Counties. It is currently

## under consideration by the Senate after passing the House. The Preferred Alternative must include the Wilderness and the Special Management Area designations included in the Bill."

Town of Ophir supports the 246,000 acres of **Special Management Areas (SMAs) in Alternative D.** These SMAs include beautiful, wild, and beloved Waterfall and Swamp Canyons on the south side of the south side of Ophir valley. The Town of Ophir obtains its drinking water from surface water intake in Waterfall Creek. Ophir is committed to maintaining watershed health and seeks Forest Service partnership by creating a SMA to protect and/or restore watersheds with a focus on building a resilient watershed and healthy forest. In August 2020 the Town of Ophir completed a Source Water Protection Plan. The Source Water Protection areas for these water sources include the Waterfall Creek watershed, and a 100-foot buffer around the pipeline from Waterfall Creek to Ophir's treatment facility.

Ophir strongly supports the concept of **Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs)** in the revised forest plan and suggests that these be retained and strengthened with additional plan components. This important management area designation could help protect habitat for a variety of wildlife species. An additional component for WMAs is needed to ensure retention of security habitat for big game. Ophir recommends a standard or guideline that requires or encourages maintenance of habitat blocks at least 500 acres in size having no roads or other human intrusions into big game habitat in all areas assigned as WMAs. This standard or guideline is needed to allow achievement of MA-DC-WLDF-01: *"Large blocks of diverse habitat are relatively undisturbed by routes, providing security for the life history, distribution, and movement of many species, including big-game species.* ...." In places where Alternative D's wilderness and SMA recommendations overlap with the WMA-base identified in Alternative B, we support the stronger management prescriptions that Alternative D's wilderness and SMA areas provide. Ophir recommends that GDL-SPEC-16, concerning travel route realignment to reduce habitat fragmentation and increase habitat security, becomes a standard.

MA-STND-WLDF-02, limiting open motorized and non-motorized route density to one mile per square mile, is good, but as currently written, this standard only applies to non-administrative system routes. Even though "new permanent roads are not currently being created for timber management activities" (DEIS at 393), this standard would not protect wildlife from the temporary roads typically created during timber sales. Such roads, though officially not open to public use, can attract motorized users. These roads are often not posted as being closed and do not appear on motor vehicle use maps. Therefore, this MA needs direction, preferably a standard, to minimize creation of temporary roads and to close and obliterate all temporary roads as soon as possible after completion of management activities, unless the environmental documentation for the project shows a need to add any of these roads to the system as roads or trails.

In our previous comment letter, submitted in December 2017, we noted our preference that the Ophir Needles be managed in a manner that protects the unique scenery of the area, but does not interfere with public enjoyment and recreation, particularly climbing. We appreciate the designation of **Ophir needles as a Special Interest Area** in all alternatives.

#### **Invasives and Species of Conservation Concern**

One of the highest priorities for the Town of Ophir is to maintain an active partnership in management of **invasive species**. We are eager to participate in management projects on adjacent lands to any projects that occur in our area under FW-OBJ-IVSP-02, 03. Continuity in management across jurisdictional boundaries is the only way to effectively mitigate invasive species.

Ophir is concerned that certain **species of conservation concern** (SCC) are not included in the GMUG's SCC list despite being species that Colorado Parks and Wildlife (CPW) has designated as Species of Greatest Conservation Need (SGCN) in the State Wildlife Action Plan (SWAP). SCC that should be included are: the American marten, bighorn sheep, northern goshawk, boreal owl, Lewis's woodpecker, flammulated owl, several species of potentially imperiled bats, ptarmigan, western bumblebee, bighorn sheep, House's sandwort, reindeer lichen, Colorado Divide whitlow-grass, and tundra buttercup. We are particularly concerned that bighorn sheep has been left off the SCC list, given its vulnerability to disease passed from livestock and to habitat fragmentation. STND-SPEC-13, requiring separation of bighorn sheep and domestic sheep must remain a standard. Disease transmission from domestic sheep to bighorns is considered one of the biggest, if not the biggest, threat to continued viability of Colorado's bighorn sheep herds. Ophir has a history of domestic sheep traveling through the valley to San Juan County where bighorn sheep are present.

#### **Climate Change**

Ophir would like to echo the concern of the "red flag" issues raised by the San Miguel, Ouray, Gunnison, and Hinsdale Counties Boards of County Commissioners (BOCC).

#### We request that a section be included to develop a baseline for the **current carbon** sequestration capacity of the GMUG and a determination of the carbon emissions of projects to monitor the balance of emissions vs. sequestration.

In the Draft EIS (DEIS), on Pg. 24 carbon sequestration was addressed as such, "Public feedback requested an alternative that would maximize carbon sequestration. While each alternative would have differing levels of carbon storage, as qualitatively analyzed in the draft environmental impact statement, an alternative solely designed to maximize carbon storage would be inconsistent with the National Forest Management Act and the Multiple-Use Sustained-Yield Act. It is not carried forward for detailed analysis."

In Colorado the largest industrial source of the "super pollutant" methane gas, which is eight six times more potent than Carbon dioxide, is located on the GMUG: the West Elk coal mine. The GMUG Forest Plan revision process presents an opportunity for the Forest Service to include plan components that address uncontrolled methane venting which is associated with coal mining. A

standard requiring methane mitigation to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from active and inactive coal mines must be included in the revised Forest Plan.

Ophir appreciates that the draft plan contains plan components intended to guide making forest infrastructure resilient to the effects of climate changes, such as extreme weather events. We also appreciate that the draft plan indicates the Forest Service will identify climate refugia. Protecting and connecting undeveloped areas is an important action that agencies can take to enhance climate change adaptation. However, the draft plan's objective is to identify these areas over a 10-year timeline; this is absolutely not soon enough given the speed at which the earth is warming and the climate is changing. The plan must protect these areas and not just monitor them.

To reiterate: At this time **Ophir cannot support the Draft Revised Plan Preferred Alternative B** as presented. **Our preferred Alternative is D**, however we still feel it falls short in areas mentioned above.

- The substantial increase of **suitable timber** proposed in all alternatives is unacceptable. Ophir believes that GMUG National Forest is much more valuable for conserving biological diversity and recreation than it ever could be for timber production.
- Ophir would like to see the **Winter ROS** of the east side of our valley changed to **Semi-Primitive Non-motorized**.
- The Town of Ophir supports the **Wilderness Area recommendations in Alternative D**, and urges that those be included in the final plan.
- Ophir strongly supports the concept of **Wildlife Management Areas (WMAs)** in the revised forest plan and suggests that those be retained and strengthened with additional plan components.
- Town of Ophir supports the 246,000 acres of **Special Management Areas (SMAs) in** Alternative D.
- We request that a section be included to develop a baseline for the current carbon sequestration capacity of the GMUG and a determination of the carbon emissions of projects to monitor the balance of emissions vs. sequestration.

We appreciate the outreach initiated by the Forest Service for collaboration of this Forest Plan Revision Process. It has allowed the Town of Ophir an opportunity to share our input and influence the planning process. As stated before, the protection of Forest Service lands that surround our community is integral to our health, well-being, economy, climate, and lifestyle. We hope to see the comments above and those submitted by our regional partners integrated into the Draft Record of Decision in great detail. The Town of Ophir comments made over the last several years have maintained consistency in supporting this plan. We look forward to the next phase in the planning process and viewing the Draft Record of Decision. Through this collaboration it is our hope that reasonable adjustments can be made to bring the plan into better alignment with regional priorities. Thank you again for the collaboration, partnership, and opportunity to provide feedback on the Draft Plan. Regards,

Corrine Platt, mayor

Town of Ophir